
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama

Date: TUESDAY, 9 OCTOBER 2018
Time: 11.30 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS - 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Graham Packham (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson
John Chapman
Christina Coker O.B.E.
Neil Constable

Enquiries: Martin Newton 
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm

N.B. Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or visual recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA

**N.B. THE FIRST 15 MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL TAKE THE FORM OF AN ‘IN
CAMERA’ SESSION WITH COMMITTEE MEMBERS, THE INTERNAL

AUDITOR AND THE TOWN CLERK ONLY PRESENT**

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 6 July 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 4)

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS
Report by the Town Clerk.  

For Information
(Pages 5 - 8)

5. INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW-UP
Report by the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 

For Information
(Pages 9 - 20)

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda

9. NON PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 21 - 22)



3

10. DISASTER RECOVERY UPDATE
Report by the Head of IT.

For Information
(Pages 23 - 28)

11. RISK REGISTER
Report by the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 29 - 58)

12. HEALTH AND SAFETY RISK REVIEW
Report by the Director of Operations and Buildings.

For Information
(Pages 59 - 62)

13. RESEARCH OUTPUTS
Report by the Head of Knowledge Exchange and Senior Research Manager

For Information
(Pages 63 - 66)

14. CATERING AUDIT UPDATE
Report by the Acting Head of Finance and Business Administration.

For Information
(Pages 67 - 68)

15. CATERING CONTRACT UPDATE
Report by the Acting Head of Finance and Business Administration.

For Information
(Pages 69 - 102)

16. SCHOOL WAIVERS UPDATE
Report by the Acting Head of Finance and Business Administration.

For Information
(Pages 103 - 108)

17. MOU ON GYA
Oral update by Acting Head of Finance and Business Administration. 

For Information

18. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE



4

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA

Friday, 6 July 2018 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board 
of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held at Committee Room - 

2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Friday, 6 July 2018 at 11.30 am

Present

Members:
Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Randall Anderson
Christina Coker O.B.E.

Neil Constable
Graham Packham

In Attendance
Vivienne Littlechild

Officers:
Martin Newton - Town Clerk's Department
Sarah Wall - Chamberlain's Department
Jeremy Newton - GSMD
Jonathon Poynor - Barbican Centre

1. 'IN CAMERA' BRIEFING 
Before the commencement of proceedings, the Committee received its usual ‘in 
camera’ briefing with only the Audit Manager (on behalf of the Head of Internal 
Audit and Risk Management) and the Committee Clerk present.   

2. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Deputy John Bennett, Lynne Williams (Principal, 
GSMD) and Pat Stothard (Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management).

3. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
There were no declarations. 

4. COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
The approved terms of reference were noted.

RESOLVED – That the Committee note and endorse the Board’s appointment 
of Neil Constable as a Co-opted member of the Committee.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
The Town Clerk read the names of those members eligible to stand as Deputy 
Chairman. 

Graham Packham being the only member to put himself forward for the role, it 
was 

RESOLVED – That Graham Packham be elected Deputy Chairman of the 
Committee for the ensuing year.  

6. CHRISTINA COKER 
Moved by the Chairman, duly seconded and 

RESOLVED – That at the conclusion of her three year term of office as 
Chairman of the Committee, her colleagues wish to convey to Christina Coker 
their sincere thanks and appreciation for her invaluable work and contribution in 
that role, and presiding over meetings, during that period. 

7. PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2018 be 
confirmed and signed as correct, subject to the inclusion of Jeremy Newton, 
GSMD in the list of attendees. 

8. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
The Committee considered the Town Clerk’s outstanding actions report and the 
following matters were raised:-

 On disaster recovery, the Deputy Chairman reported that, following a 
meeting with the Head of IT, he was now of the opinion that this was not 
a ‘burning platform issue’ – however, a test of a server room outage 
should be held in the near future to confirm resilience once redundant 
internet connectivity infrastructure had been installed. The Head of IT, 
currently on holiday, would attend the next Committee meeting.

 The Deputy Chairman raised the issue of departments ordering their 
own IT equipment and the need for a confirmed purchasing policy. He 
asked that this matter be drawn to the attention of the Board at its next 
meeting.

 In response to a question from a Member, it was noted that the School 
and Barbican operate their own IT separate from CoL. The Member put 
forward the view that purchasing efficiencies would be made through 
greater collaboration and the Committee were informed that education 
licences were cheaper for the School to purchase than CoL and 
therefore a separation is often of benefit. 

 Noted that the Head of Business Systems and Data had now been 
appointed and that a succinct paper on IT pedagogy (layman’s terms) 
from that officer would now come before the Committee in November.  

Page 2



 A report on risk register health and safety compliance would come to the 
Committee in October. A Member asked that this paper be circulated in 
advance of the agenda for that meeting.

 Noted that the update report on waivers would also come to the 
additional meeting in October to provide the Committee with 
reassurance that set procedures are being followed.

 The Head of Research would report on the risk register focus on 
‘decrease in research and innovation outputs’ in November.  

RECEIVED.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management’s update paper was 
considered next.

The following points were made:-

 A copy of the finalised terms of reference document for the planned audit 
of student support would be circulated to Committee members.

 In appendix 3, a revised target date was required for the live high priority 
recommendation related to Strategic Information Technology Services 
(SITS).  Implementation status updates were outstanding in respect of 
those recommendations due for implementation in July 2018.  Noted 
that Internal Audit software training had now been completed by the 
School’s audit liaison which would enable direct update on the system in 
respect of recommendation statuses.  Officers advised that some 
recommendation target dates would ‘slip’ from July to September 2018. 
A Member asked that the Board consider the SITS issue at its next 
meeting.

 On audit of data quality (appendix 2, recommendations 2, 3 and 4 – 
pages 25 to 28 of agenda pack), it was noted that a paper would be 
submitted to the Committee’s next meeting in October reassuring 
members on identified process, procedures and single points of 
challenge mitigation around data, also including job description revision 
and controls and mitigation arrangements on the DLHE return.

 On audit of catering (page 29) and contract management, noted that 
contract is part of a CoL-wide catering tender due to commence in 
September 2018. The Chairman asked that she be informed of contract / 
KPI details to be reassured on all of these areas and that the Committee 
receive a report on all concerns identified in the audit at its next meeting. 

 Following on from the issue raised by a Member earlier, the Deputy 
Chairman asked that the Board’s attention be drawn to consideration for 
maximising opportunities for bulk buying discounts for IT services.   

Page 3



Neil Constable left the meeting at this point (12.40pm).

 Noted that the planned audit work in respect of the accommodation 
strategy would examine the framework for developing this.

RECEIVED.

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
There were no urgent items. 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

13. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That non-public minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2018 be 
confirmed and signed as correct.

14. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
With the agreement of the Chairman, the Committee considered an urgent 
report by the Principal on the Risk Register. 

The meeting ended at 1.02 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Martin Newton 
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 4



Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

Outstanding Actions Log

Item Date Action Officer 
responsible

To be 
completed/ 

progressed to 
next stage

Progress Update

1. 21/07/17 Development of IT Pedagogy fails to 
keep pace with competition
The Chairman noted that any risk 
associated with this area was now 
extremely low. She suggested that the 
Principal might wish to keep this under 
review, given that digital development 
forms part of the new Strategic Plan.

Principal Report proposed to 
November 2018 meeting.

2. 08/11/17 Disaster Recovery Site: Cloud Backup
November 17 reported that full 
implementation had not yet been 
completed and that backing up was now 
taking place 5 days out of 7.

January 18 reported that it is considered 
sufficient for the server information to be 
‘dumped’ twice a day on weekdays to 
the cloud, with weekend cloud data 
backup taking place.

Principal Report proposed to October 
2018 meeting.

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



Item Date Action Officer 
responsible

To be 
completed/ 

progressed to 
next stage

Progress Update

3. 08/11/17 Risk Register
The current risk on ‘Failure to Manage 
Health and Safety and to Comply with 
Statutory Requirements’ remained at 
‘Extreme’ impact – noted this was ‘work 
in progress’ that may be resolved by 
January 2018.

Principal January 18, noted that 
documentation reviewed and 
considered in line with best 
practice and training.  
Operational detail to be 
checked to ensure quality 
assurance versus quality 
control. Noted that the scoring 
of such risk would remain 
higher until such assumptions 
had been fully checked and 
confirmed as implemented 
and completed.

Report to October 2018 
meeting.

4. 30/04/18 Waivers Principal Deferred from July 18 to 
October 18 meeting.

5. 30/04/18 Risk Register focus paper on ‘decrease 
in research and innovation outputs’

Principal Deferred from July 18 to 
October 18 meeting.

P
age 6



Item Date Action Officer 
responsible

To be 
completed/ 

progressed to 
next stage

Progress Update

6. 06/07/18 Other matters arising from July 18 
meeting

 Contract for new catering 
contract; and

 Catering Audit 

 Controls and Mitigation 
arrangements on DLHE note; and

 Process, Procedures and single 
points of challenge mitigation 
around data   
 

 
 MOU on GYA

Reports to October 18 
meeting.

Oral updates at October 18 
meeting.

Oral update at October 18 
meeting.

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 8



Committee: Date:
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music and Drama 

9th October 2018

Subject: 
Internal Audit Recommendations Follow-Up 

Public

Report of:
Pat Stothard, Head of Audit and Risk Management

For Information

Summary

This report provides an update on the outcome of a recent corporate 
follow-up exercise focused on red and amber priority recommendations 
due for implementation by 31st July 2018.  This corporate exercise is 
undertaken approximately quarterly, in line with the City’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee reporting cycle, and there were seven School 
recommendations which were in scope. The School’s corporate follow-up 
outcome, as reported to the September 2018 meeting of the City’s Audit 
and Risk Management Committee, is detailed in this report and in 
Appendix 1.  

Each meeting of this Committee receives a breakdown of the School’s 
live (not implemented or partially implemented) high priority 
recommendations which have been agreed by management. Internal 
Audit enquiries have confirmed that there are eleven such 
recommendations as at mid-September 2018, reduced from thirteen 
agreed recommendations at the time of the last report to this Committee 
in July 2018. Appendix 2 gives a breakdown of recommendations, 
original target dates, revised target dates and the management comment 
– where supplied – to explain the delay in implementation. 

Appendix 3 sets out the high priority recommendation which the School’s 
Management do not intend to implement i.e. where the risk has been 
accepted. Previously this recommendation has been included within the 
live high priority recommendations appendix and at the July 2018 
meeting of this Committee this brought the total to fourteen.  ‘Not agreed / 
risk accepted’ recommendations are now reported separately as it has 
recently been agreed that the City’s Audit and Risk Management 
Committee will consider these at each meeting, resulting in either closure 
of recommendations or a request for Management reconsideration

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the corporate recommendations follow-up 
outcome, the live high priority recommendations position and the high priority 
recommendation which the School’s Management do not intend to implement.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Main Report

Background

1. The corporate follow-up exercise has recently been completed in respect of all 
live red and amber priority recommendations due for implementation by 31st 
July 2018.  Status updates were sought from recommendation owners and 
evidence was requested of progress in implementation. The corporate follow-up 
outcome has been agreed for reporting to the September 2018 meeting of the 
City’s Audit and Risk Management Committee.

2. This Committee receives an update on the School’s live high priority 
recommendations position at each meeting, including a breakdown of 
recommendation status, original target dates, revised target dates and the 
School’s Management comments where supplied.

3. At the time of the last Internal Audit update to this Committee, in July 2018, 
there were fourteen live high priority recommendations relating to the School.

Corporate Follow-Up Approach

4. The corporate high priority (red and amber) recommendation monitoring 
process is operating as follows:  

 Updates on implementation are sought quarterly;

 Recommendations are assessed as “implemented” only where suitable 
evidence has been provided to Internal Audit, rather than advised by 
management / recommendation owners;

 Where evidence is not provided, recommendations are assessed as either 
partially or not implemented and a revised target is agreed, recognising this 
Committee’s view that there should be only one extension to implementation 
deadlines.

5. Management continue to be reminded that any implementation actions which 
are extended beyond the revised target date may be subject to challenge by this 
Committee and senior management / recommendation owners asked to attend 
to explain the issues in progressing agreed actions to timescale.

Corporate Follow-Up Outcome

6. The corporate follow-up exercise has recently been completed in respect of all 
live red and amber priority recommendations due for implementation by 31st 
July 2018 and there were seven such recommendations related to the School.  
Status updates were sought from recommendation owners and evidence was 
requested of progress in implementation. The School’s follow-up outcome for 
reporting to the September 2018 meeting of the City’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee was as follows:

Page 10



Implementation 
Evidenced 

Partially 
Implemented

Not 
Implemented

Total Comment

1 4 2 7
Revised target dates 
have been supplied 
for the six live 
recommendations.

7. Details of these six live high priority recommendations (i.e. not implemented or 
only partially implemented) were summarised for the City’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee and this information is shown at Appendix 1.  This 
analysis includes a comparison of revised target dates for recommendation 
implementation against original target dates. The City’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee has previously stated its position that revised 
timescales should be set only in exceptional circumstances. 

Live Recommendations Position 

8. In addition to the corporate follow-up exercise and in accordance with the 
requirements of this Committee, Internal Audit has requested information from 
recommendation owners to determine the status of all high priority 
recommendations relating to the School as at mid-September 2018.  Internal 
Audit enquiries have determined that since the July 2018 meeting of this 
Committee, the number of live high priority recommendations has decreased 
from fourteen to twelve - eleven agreed by management and one not agreed.  

9. Detailed recommendation statuses are shown at Appendix 2 and reflect that of 
the eleven live high priority recommendations agreed by management: 

 Nine revised target dates for implementation have been supplied (including 
two that relate to red priority recommendations).

 Confirmation of status is awaited in respect of two recommendations due for 
implementation at the beginning of September 2018.

 Six recommendations have been categorised as ‘not implemented’, including 
the two where status updates are awaited.

 Five recommendations have been categorised as ‘partially implemented’.

10. Internal Audit will continue to liaise with recommendation owners to confirm the 
progress of implementation.

Red Priority Recommendations

11. The two live red priority recommendations arose from the 2017-18 audit of 
Catering (including Student Bar) and since that time a new City Corporation 
contract has been rolled out; service provision commenced in September 2018.

12. One of these recommendations cannot be categorised as implemented until the 
contract is formally agreed and signed – a revised target date of October 2018 
has been supplied for completion of this action.  

13. The remaining red priority recommendation, relating to external inspections of 
Health and Safety, has been categorised as partially implemented as the 

Page 11



specific issue identified at the time of audit has been addressed.  Full 
implementation cannot be demonstrated until the next annual inspection has 
been carried out, hence a revised target date of December 2018 has been 
supplied.  Internal Audit will continue to liaise with recommendation owners to 
obtain evidence of full implementation accordingly.

Not Agreed / Risk Accepted Recommendations

14. While every effort is made to ensure that high priority recommendations are 
implemented within appropriate timescales, there may be occasions where 
Management have decided that the risk is not sufficiently great to allocate 
resources to address the control improvement.  It has recently been agreed that 
the City’s Audit and Risk Management Committee will consider such 
recommendations at each meeting and this will result in either closure of 
recommendations or a request for Management reconsideration.  There is one 
such recommendation relating to the Guildhall School and this is shown in 
Appendix 3 for information.

Conclusion

15. The recent corporate follow-up exercise for high priority recommendations due 
for implementation by 31st July 2018 included seven such recommendations 
related to the Guildhall School.  Formal follow-up confirmed implementation of 
one recommendation and revised target dates were supplied for the remaining 
six.  The corporate follow-up outcome was agreed for reporting to the 
September 2018 meeting of the City’s Audit and Risk Management Committee.

16. In accordance with the requirements of this Committee, Internal Audit has 
confirmed the School’s live high priority recommendations position as at mid-
September 2018 and the number has reduced from fourteen at the time of the 
last report to this Committee, to twelve. Of these twelve, eleven are agreed by 
the School’s management (five partially implemented and six not implemented) 
and one (amber priority) is not agreed / risk accepted.

17. Internal Audit will continue to liaise with recommendation owners to track the 
status of agreed high priority recommendations and to obtain evidence of full 
implementation accordingly.

Appendices

 Appendix 1 – Corporate Follow-Up Outcome: Guildhall School – 
Recommendations Not Implemented / Partially Implemented

 Appendix 2 – All Live High Priority Recommendations as at 18/09/18
 Appendix 3 – Guildhall School ‘Not Agreed / Risk Accepted’ Recommendation

Contact: Pat Stothard, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
E: Pat.stothard@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 12



Appendix 1
Corporate Follow-Up Outcome for the City’s Audit & Risk Management Committee (September 2018) – For Information

Guildhall School: Corporate Follow-Up Exercise – Recommendations due for implementation by 31st July 2018.

This table provides the detail of high priority recommendations identified as not implemented / partially implemented during the corporate 
follow-up exercise. This appendix forms part of the Internal Audit Update to the City’s Audit & Risk Management Committee in September 2018

Implementation 
Status

Department & Audit Area Original 
Target 
Date

Revised 
Target 

Date (pre 
follow-up)

New 
Target 

Date (post 
follow-up)

Not Partial

Management Comment

Baxter Storey Contract 
Management – ESB Priority 1 
Recommendations (RED 
priority)

Succession Planning, Talent 
Management & Staff 
Development – Workforce Plan

Succession Planning, Talent 
Management & Staff 
Development – Succession 
Planning

22/05/18

30/04/18

31/01/18

N/A

31/07/18

31/07/18

31/12/18

31/12/18

31/12/18

0

1

1

1

0

0

As this Health & Safety Audit is undertaken annually (by ESB) and 
will take place in the Autumn term, proof of monthly review cannot be 
supplied until this time. Revised target timescale set for 
demonstration of full implementation.

With changes in senior staff at the School and further development of 
the strategic plan, and the development of the corporate HR 
transformation plans we have delayed finalising our workforce plan to 
ensure we are able to take into account all relevant factors. The 
overall objectives in the School Strategic plan have now been agreed 
and a more detailed 5 year business plan is now being developed 
and the workforce plan and talent management will need to reflect 
the new business plan. Revised date - 31st December 2018.

Following this initial plan the City started developing a talent 
management strategy as part of the HR transformation.  We therefore 
delayed our plan to ensure we could use the expertise of the new 
Organisational Development team in Corporate HR and so we could 
align with any corporate plan.  This also links into a new appraisal 
system that the City are currently trialling and will launched across 
the corporation from April 2019. The overall objectives in the School 
Strategic plan have now been agreed and a more detailed 5 year 
business plan is now being developed and the workforce plan and 
talent management will need to reflect the new business plan. 
Revised date – 31st December 2018.

P
age 13



Department & Audit Area Original 
Target 
Date

Revised 
Target 

Date (pre 
follow-up)

New 
Target 

Date (post 
follow-up)

Implementation 
Status

Management Comment

Not Partial

Satellite Site Operations – 
Strategic Plan

Satellite Sites – Collaboration 
Agreements

Sundial Court – Accommodation 
Strategy

31/12/17

31/10/17

31/07/18

31/07/18

N/A

N/A

30/09/18

30/09/18

30/11/18

0

0

0

1

1

1

For both Satellite Sites recommendations: this links in to the School’s 
strategic objective around under 18 provision.  A consultant was 
brought in to develop this strategy with focus on governance and 
SLA’s.  The final draft is being tweaked over the summer and the final 
version will be presented to an Under 18 away day in September.

A draft report will be signed off by SMT in September and the Board 
in November.  Partially implemented status due to a copy of the draft 
Strategy having been supplied to Internal Audit. Revised target date 
for full implementation is 30th November 2018.

TOTAL 2 4

P
age 14



APPENDIX 2

Live High Priority Recommendations for October 2018 A&RMC of the Guildhall School

Schedule of all i.e. whether due or not, live high priority (red and amber) recommendations as at mid-September 2018

‘*’ denotes this recommendation was included within the corporate follow-up exercise

No. Audit Area Priority Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

Satellite Sites
1 Strategic Plan * AMBER Development of full formal 

strategic plan for the satellite 
operations

Dec 2017 Sept 2018 Partially Implemented. 

Target date for full implementation revised from July 2018 to 
Sept 2018. 

Management comment: This links in to the School’s strategic 
objective Under 18 provision.  A consultant was brought in to 
develop this strategy with focus on governance and SLAs. The 
final draft is being tweaked over the summer and the final 
version will be presented to an Under 18 away day in 
September. 

2 Collaboration 
Agreements *

AMBER Development of full formal 
collaboration agreements 
(MoUs) with partnership 
satellite sites

Oct 2017 Sept 2018 Not Implemented.

Target date for full implementation revised from July 2018 to 
Sept 2018. 

Update as above re Strategic Plan.
Succession Planning, Talent Management & Staff Development
3 Talent 

Management 
Strategy *

AMBER Incorporation of a talent 
management strategy within 
the Professional 
Development Framework

Jan 2018 Dec 2018 Not Implemented.

Target date for full implementation revised from July 2018 to Dec 
2018.  

P
age 15



No. Audit Area Priority Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

Management comment: Following this initial plan the City started 
developing a talent management strategy as part of the HR 
transformation.  We therefore delayed our plan to ensure we 
could use the expertise of the new Organisational Development 
team in Corporate HR and so we could align with any corporate 
plan.  This also links into a new appraisal system that the City 
are currently trialling and will launched across the corporation 
from April 2019. 
The overall objectives in the School Strategic plan have now 
been agreed and a more detailed 5 year business plan is now 
being developed and the workforce plan and talent management 
will need to reflect the new business plan.

4 Workforce Plan 
*

AMBER A workforce plan to be 
developed in line with the 
new Strategic Plan

April 2018 Dec 2018 Not Implemented.

Target date for full implementation revised from July 2018 to Dec 
2018.

Management comment: With changes in senior staff at the 
School and further development of the strategic plan, and the 
development of the corporate HR transformation plans we have 
delayed finalising our workforce plan to ensure we are able to 
take into account all relevant factors. The overall objectives in 
the School Strategic plan have now been agreed and a more 
detailed 5 year business plan is now being developed and the 
workforce plan and talent management will need to reflect the 
new business plan.

Sundial Court Project Governance (Lease Renewal)
5 Accommodation 

Strategy *
AMBER Development of an 

accommodation strategy in 
line with the School’s 
strategic aims.

July 2018 Nov 2018 Partially Implemented.

Revised target date for full implementation supplied.

Management comment: Due to timings for the September Board 
of Governors and holidays, this has been moved to November.  

P
age 16



No. Audit Area Priority Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

A draft report will be signed off by SMT in September and the 
Board in November.  

Data Quality
6 Returns 

Management AMBER
Introduction of central 
arrangements for oversight of 
returns management.

Sept 2018 N/A Status update awaited by Internal Audit

Catering (including Student Bar)
7 Contractual 

Documentation: 
RED Contracts and supporting 

documentation, for example 
service specification and 
tender submissions, should 
be accessible to contract 
managers and form the basis 
of contract management 
activity.

Sept 2018 Oct 2018 Not Implemented.

Revised target date agreed as the contract, in respect of the 
service which commenced at the beginning of September 2018, 
has not yet been signed.

8 Contractual KPI 
monitoring 

AMBER Full records of KPI 
monitoring, at the frequency 
prescribed by the contract, 
should be maintained as part 
of the contract management 
process.  

Sept 2018 Dec 2018 Partially implemented.

Internal Audit comment: The new contract specifies KPIs and 
arrangements for monitoring.  Revised target date supplied for 
full implementation to enable 3 months of monitoring activity to 
be demonstrated.

9 Subsidy and 
Profit Share 
Arrangements

AMBER Formalisation of the terms of 
financial arrangements 
related to contract delivery.

Sept 2018 N/A Status TBC.

Internal Audit comment: The contract, for the service that 
commenced in September 2018, has been drafted but not yet 
been signed.  Revised target date for full implementation TBC. 

10 Contractual 
Sanctions for 
Poor 
Contractual 
Performance

AMBER Management to ensure that 
provision is made within 
contracts for appropriate 
sanctions in the event of 
repeated poor performance.

Sept 2018 Oct 2018 Partially Implemented.

Internal Audit comment: The new contract specifies sanctions for 
poor performance. Revised target date supplied for full 
implementation i.e. signing of the contract.

P
age 17



No. Audit Area Priority Outstanding Action Original 
Target 
Date

Revised
Target 
Date

Status & Management Comments

11 Management of 
External Health 
& Safety 
Inspection 
Reports – RED 
PRIORITY *

RED Management to ensure that: 
1) any disagreement over the 
outcome of external H&S 
inspections are resolved at 
the earliest opportunit7, and 
2) contract management 
reporting to clearly reflect the 
progress of implementation 
of ‘priority 1’ H&S 
recommendations.

May 2018 Dec 2018 Partially Implemented.

Internal Audit comment: Disagreement over the H&S inspection 
report examined at the time of audit fieldwork has been resolved. 
Management comment: As this audit takes place annually and 
will take place in Autumn term, proof of monthly review cannot 
take place until this happens.

In summary:

 Six recommendations categorised as ‘not implemented’ (numbers 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8).
 Of these ‘not implemented’ recommendations, two are overdue and confirmation of status is required (recommendation numbers 6 and 9). 
 Revised target implementation dates have been supplied for the remaining four ‘not implemented’ recommendations (including one red priority).
 Five recommendations categorised as ‘partially implemented’ (numbers 1, 5 and 9 to 11).
 Revised target implementation dates have been supplied for these ‘partially implemented’ recommendations (including one red priority). 

P
age 18



APPENDIX 3

High Priority Recommendations Not Agreed (Risk Accepted)

High priority recommendation where the School’s management have accepted the risk of non-implementation

Audit Area Recommendation Detail Management Comment

Data Quality - Resilience The Academic Registrar and Director of 
the Student Experience should ensure 
that appropriate arrangements are in 
place to enable the School to continue 
submitting student returns should the 
Student Data and Information Manager 
leave the School's employment or in the 
event of long term absence.

This is one of the many “single points of failures” in the School that arise because the 
School is relatively small and does not have teams of individuals concentrating on the 
same task.  This role is too technical and complex to be learnt as an add-on to an existing 
role and there are no role holders in the Registry with spare capacity in their roles.  To 
train someone to an adequate level in a junior capacity, who would be available during 
sickness, holidays or cover at resignation, would require a full-time grade D permanent 
post.

However, the School has lived with this particular risk for 12 years and to date has 
managed that risk internally more than adequately when there has been long-term 
sickness. Going forward management could be more difficult as there will be more 
reporting points under HESA Data Futures and external help will probably be required.  
Should there be significant illness or a resignation the School would need to recruit a high-
level temporary worker from a HE recruitment specialist such as Prospectus.    The risk 
remains that there might be not be a suitable temporary worker at that moment in time.  

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 20



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	5 Internal Audit Recommendations Follow-Up
	Appendix 1_Corporate Follow-Up Live High Priority Recs for print
	Appendix 2 Oct 2018 Live High Priority Recommendations for print
	Appendix 3 Oct 2018 High Priority Recommendations_Risk Accepted for print

	9 Non Public Minutes
	10 Disaster Recovery Update
	11 Risk Register
	Risk Register October 2018 v 2

	12 Health and Safety Risk Review
	13 Research Outputs
	14 Catering Audit Update
	15 Catering Contract Update
	Lot 2 Draft Contract
	Schedule 6 KPIs Appendix 1pdf (002) (1)
	Schedule 12 - Profit Share

	16 School Waivers Update

